UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF SOUTH DAKOTA
CENTRAL DIVISION
Plains Commerce Bank, } CIV 05-3002
)
Plaintiff, )
)
Vvs. )
) SECOND AFFIDAVIT
Long Family Land and Cattle Company, ) OF RONNIE AND LILA LONG
Inc., and Ronnie and Lila Long, )
)
Defendants. )
State of South Dakota:
$$

County of Pennington :

Ronnie and Lila Long, being duly sworn, depose and state that this Affidavit is based on
our personal knowledge of the matters addressed in this Affidavit. We are Defendants named in
this case, and we were Plaintiffs in the tribal court case. We have read all the pleadings in this
case and 1n the tribal court case, the trial court, and the appellate court, and the documents
attached to Mr. Simon’s first and second affidavit, and the documents attached to Ronnie Long’s
first and second Affidavits. Ronnie Long was a witness at trial, and was present during the entire
trial, and was present at the Appellate Court hearing. Ronnie and Lila Long participated with
counsel in preparing pleadings and other documents, and they have read the transcript of the trial
and the appellate argument. Ronnie Long reaffirms upon his personal knowledge, his first
Affidavit and the documents attached thereto, which are incorporated herein by this reference,
and Ronnie Long resubmits his first Affidavit and documents attached thereto and referred to
therein which are attached to Defendants’ Motion for Summary Judgment.

Defendants, Long Family Land and Cattle Company, Inc. and Ronnie and ILila Long are

sometimes collectively referred to in this Affidavit as the Longs. Ronnie and Lila Long are




referred to as Ronnie and Lila Long. Plaintiff, Plains Commerce Bank is referred to in this
Affidavit as the Bank. Attachments to Defendants’ Brief in Support of Defendants’ Motion for
Summary Judgment are referred to as (Att, _ ).

The Bank was the lender for Long Family Land and Cattle Company, Inc. (referred to in
this Affidavit as the Company) since 1989. (Simon Aff. para. 4) The Bank also loaned money
to Ronnie and Lila Long. Some of the Bank’s loans to the Company were guaranteed by the
Bureau of Indian Affairs (referred to in this Affidavit as the BIA) (Simon Aff. para. 4; Long Aff.
para. 10)

The Company was at all times a majority Indian-owned corporation involved in farming
and ranching land located on the Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe Reservation. (Long Aff. para. 3)
The Articles of Incorporation of the Company required that the Company “be controlled by
Native Americans who at least at all times own 51% of the outstanding stock in the corporation.”
(Long Aff. para. 3, Att. 20) The shares of the Company were owned by Kenneth Long, Maxine
Long, Ronnic Long, and Lila Long. Native American CRST members Maxine, Ronnie, and Lila
Long at all times owned at least 51% of the Company. (Long Aff. para. 3, Att. 20} When
Maxine Long died, she bequeathed her shares in the Company to Ronnie and Lila Long. When
Kenneth Long died in 1995, he bequeathed his shares in the Company to his four children.
Three of the children transferred their shares to Ronnie Long. After Kenneth’s death in July
1995, Ronnie and Lila Long owned 100% of the Company. (Long Aff. para. 9) Thus, after July
1995, the Company was 100% Indian owned by CRST members, Ronnie and Lila Long. (IL.ong
Aff. para. 9) As an Indian-owned corporation, the Company was entitled to apply for and

receive BIA guarantees for the loans it received from the Bank.



The Company was formed to qualify for and obtain BIA guaranteed bank loans for the
Longs’ family farming and ranching business. (Long Aff. para. 8) The Bank would not have
been able to obtain BIA guarantees of its loans unless the Company was at all times at least 51%
owned by Native Americans. 25 CFR sec. 103.7 provides that if Indian ownership falls below
51%, the bank loans will be in default, and the guaranty shall cease. (Long Aff. Att. 17). The
Company owned livestock and machinery, grew and harvested crops, and pastured its livestock
on 2,230 acres of land owned by Kenneth and Maxine Long. The Company pastured its
livestock on the CRST Indian Range Unit leased by Ronnie Long and his daughter, Bonita
Richter, who are both Native American CRST Tribal members. (Long Aff. para 8.)

Loans made by the Bank to the Company were guaranteed by the BIA. The BIA
guarantees required a first lien on the cattle, machinery, crops, and feed of the Company, and a
second mortgage on the land owned by Kenneth and Maxine Long. (Long Aff. Att. 19) The
principal place of business of the Company was at all times located on the CRST Reservation,
Ronnie and Lila Long maintained a checking account on the CRST Reservation, and since 1996
the Company maintained a checking account on the CRST Reservation. (Long Aff. para. 3)

Kenneth and Maxine Long, Ronnie Long’s parents, owned their 2,230 acres of deeded
agricultural land for over 40 years. (Long Aff. para. 7) They also owned a house which was
their residence. The land and house are located within the CRST Reservation. Ronnie Long’s
wife is Lila Long. Kenneth, Maxine, Ronnie, and Lila Long have lived on the CRST
Reservation all of their lives. (Long Aff. para. 5) Maxine Long, and her son, Ronnie Long, and
his wife, Lila Long, are all Native American members of the Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe.

Kenneth Long was not a member of the CRST. (Long Aff. para. 6)




Kenneth and Maxine Long were required by the Bank to sign personal guarantees of the
loans of the Bank to the Company. (Long Aff. para. 10; attached to Long Aff.) Kenneth and
Maxine Long were required by the Bank to mortgage their 2,230 acres to the Bank as collateral
for the Bank’s loans to the Company. (Long Aff. para 10; attached to Long Aff.) The BIA
guarantees of the Bank’s loans to the Company are noted on the mortgages. (Long Aff. para. 10;
attached to Long Aff)) Ronnie Long, Lila Long, Kenneth Long, and Maxine Long were all
required by the Bank to grant security interests to the Bank in their personal vehicles, farm
equipment, crops, feed, grain, and livestock that were located on the 2,230 acres and within the
CRST Reservation. (Long Aff. para. 10; attached to Long Aff.)

Kenneth Long died in July 1995. (Simon Aff. para. 4) In the spring of 1996, Bank
officers came to the Longs’ 2,230 acres on the CRST Reservation and inspected the land,
livestock, hay, and machinery on the land. (Long Aff. para. 11) The Bank proposed a new loan
agreement to Ronnie Long. Ronnie Long was bequeathed the 2,230 acres of land owned by
Kenneth Long when he died in 1995, under his will and the assignments of the other children.
(Long Aff. para. 16, Att. 21)

The discussions concerning the new loan agreement took place between the Bank
officers, Ronnie and Lila Long, and CRST Tribal officers at the CRST Tribal offices located on
the CRST Reservation. (Long Aff. para. 11) The Bank proposed a deed in lieu of foreclosure
transferring ownership of the Longs’ 2,230 acres and house to the Bank, and in return the Bank
would credit $478,000 against the debt owed by the Longs to the Bank. The Bank agreed it
would finance the sale of the Longs’ land back to the Longs on a bank financed contract for

deed. (Long Aff. para. 11)




Sometime later the Bank changed the agreement. The Bank sent a letter addressed to
Romnic Long, which was admitted into evidence without objection at trial, wherein the Bank told
Ronnie Long the Bank would not finance the sale of the land back to the Longs on a contract for
deed “because of possible jurisdictional problems if the bank ever had to foreclose on this land
when it is contracted or leased to an Indian owned entity on the reservation.” (Long Aff. para.
12, Att. 2)

In the revised agreement the Bank changed the terms from a bank financed contract for
deed to a two-year lease with option to purchase. The Longs could buy their land back from the
Bank by paying the Bank $468,000 in a lump sum at the end of only two years. (Long Aff. para.
13, Att. 3)

During the discussions concerning the revised agreement and the drafting and signing of
the written agreements, the Bank was represented by its lawyer, but the Longs were not
represented by a lawyer. The revised agreement was prepared by the Bank in two documents
entitled: (a) Loan Agreement, and (b) Lease With Option to Purchase. Both documents were
signed at the same time on the same day on December 5, 1996. (Long Aff. para. 16, Att. 3), and
were part of the same agreement.

The revised agreement prepared by the Bank involved several main points: (a) when the
2,230 acres of land and house were deeded to the Bank, the Bank would credit $478,000 against
debt owed to the bank by Ronnie and Lila Long and the Company; (b) the Longs would lease the
land from the Bank for a period of two years; (¢) the Bank would make the Longs a new
operating loan of $70,000 to care of their cattle and crops; (d) the Bank would make the Longs a
loan of $37,500 to purchase 110 calves to be fed and pastured with the Longs’ calves to increase

their income so they could buy back the land from the Bank; and (e) the Bank would enter into a



lease purchase agreement which would provide that the Longs could buy back the 2,230 acres of
land from the Bank at the end of two years. (Long Aff.,, Att. 3) The Bank received the deed to
the 2,230 acres and the house by Personal Representatives Deed dated December 10, 1996.
(Simon Aff., Att. 3)

The Loan Agreement shows that credit from the transfer of the land and house paid off a
personal loan of the Bank to Ronnie and Lila Long, as well as BIA guaranteed loans of the Bank
to the Company. (Simon Aff., Att. 5)

The Loan Agreement references and attaches the deed the Bank received to the 2,230
acres of land and the house and also provides that the Bank would enter into a lease with
purchase option for the land. (Simon Aff., Att. 5)

Ronnte and Lila Long asked the Bank to extend the option exercise date sixty days.
(Long Aff.,, Att. 6) The Bank denied the extension request. (Long Aff., Att. 6) The Longs did
not give up possession of any of the 2,230 acres. CRST Law and Order Code 10-2-6(6) provides
that where a tenant holds over and retains possession for more than 60 days after the expiration
of the lease term, without any demand for possession or notice to quit by the landlord, the tenant
shall be deemed to have permission of the landlord to hold over for an additional year, and such
tenants shall not be liable for unlawful detainer for such holding over.

On October 28, 1993, the Longs met with three Bank officers, Jim Nielsen, Chuck
Simon, and Dennis Jensen, and the Bank’s lawyer; and also present was Dennis Huber and Bret
Maxon from the North/South Dakota Native Amernican Business Development Center; John
Lemke, CRST/BIA Finance Credit Officer; Harley Henderson and Monica Lind, CRST officers;
and Stacey Johnston, loan officer of the BIA. (Tr. 396} The cash flows developed by Dennis

Huber and Bret Maxon were presented, and all parties agreed that the restructure plan would




work. (Tr. 401) Dennis Huber of the North/South Dakota Native American Business
Development Center testified at trial that he and his associate, Bret Maxon, prepared the cash
flows on October 28, and 29. (Tr. Ex. 8A) He testified that the cash flows marked Trial Exhibit
8A were his work product. (Tr. 397) The Huber cash flows, Exhibit 8A, were prepared to show if
the Bank’s restructuring plan would work. (Exs. SA, 6, 7) All parties agreed that the plan was
economically feasible and would work. (Tr. 401) Stacey Johnston, credit officer of the BIA, had
final approval of the restructuring plan. (Tr. 397) At the end of the meeting on October 28, the
Bank, the Longs, and the BIA all agreed on the restructuring plan and the Huber cash flows.
Dennis Huber testified it was a done deal on October 29. (Tr. 400) Jim Nielsen for the Bank
initialed the cash flows prepared by Dennis Huber. (Ex. 8A)

Ronnie Long explained that he needed the $40,000 of the $70,000 operating loan in
November to prepare the livestock for winter. The Huber cash flow shows $40,000 of the
$70,000 operating loan paid to Longs in November. Ronnie Long explained he needed the
operating loan money in November to move hay twenty miles to where his cattle would spend
the winter. (Long Aff. para. 19, Tr. 151)

The Loan Agreement and Lease With Option to Purchase prepared by the Bank were not
ready to be signed however, until December 5, five weeks later. The Bank did not send a letter
to the BIA requesting approval until December 12, six wecks later. (Tr. Ex. 8). The Bank
enclosed with its letter to BIA a financial statement and modified cash flows. (Tr. Ex. §)

Ronnie Long learned for the first time at trial, that the Bank had modified the Huber cash
flows and the plan without his knowledge or approval. (Tr. 188) Dennis Huber testified that the
cash flows sent by the Bank to the BIA (Tr. Ex. 8) were not his work. (Tr. 408-409) He

explained that a line of credit loan is key to the success of a restructure plan. (Tr. 409) However,




the Bank’s cash flows (Tr. Ex. 8) did not show any line of credit loan. The cash flows that
Huber prepared show that the restructure plan would work (Tr. Ex. 8A), but the cash flows sent
by the Bank to the BIA show that Longs’ restructure plan would not work. (Tr. Ex. 8) The
overdrafts shown on the bank’s cash flows are minus $28,000 the first month, and overdrafts
continue to increase throughout the Bank’s cash flow (Tr. 410), increasing to $104,280 in
overdrafts in August of the third year. It appears clear that the Bank in its letter to the BIA
unilaterally increased the line of credit operating loan from $70,000 to $85,000, showing Longs’
operation more needy of borrowed money. (Tr. 410) The increased line of credit requested by the
Bank in its letter to the BIA of $85,000, however, would not come close to covering the deficit
spending of $104,280 shown on the Bank’s cash flows for the third year of the plan. (Tr. Ex. 8)
Dennis Huber testified that the BIA would not approve such negative cash flows. (Tr. 410) The
Huber cash flows approved by everyone at the October 28 meeting, which were initialed by Jim
Nielsen for the Bank and approved by Stacey Johnston for the BIA (Tr. Ex. 8A), show an
operating loan of $70,000, not $85,000, and do not show $104,280 of red ink as shown on the
Bank’s cash flows. (Tr. Ex. 8)

One of the jurors asked the Court “whose initials are on top of the 8A cash flows, year
1?7 The Bank responded that the initials are Jim Nielsen’s, a Bank officer. (Tr. 429) This shows
that the Bank approved Huber’s cash flows. (Ex. 8A) Although the Bank’s letter to the BIA of
December 12 showed an operating loan of $85,000, agreeing with the bad cash flows attached to
the Bank’s letter to the BIA (Tr. Ex. 8), the Bank’s later letter of January 16, to Dennis Huber
shows an operating loan of $40,000, which is in line with Huber’s good cash flows. (Tr Ex. 10)
(Tr. Ex. 8A). Stacey Johnston had already approved Huber’s cash flows for the BIA on October

28. (Tr. Ex. 8A) However, the Bank sent modified cash flows to the BIA, which the BIA



believed were a “modification” of the plan requiring a “more complete application.” (Tr. 290)
(Tr. Ex. 8, 11) Tt is undisputed the Bank never made a more complete application to the BIA as
requested by the BIA (Tr. 166, 290) (Tr. Ex. 11}, never submitted a more complete application as
requested by the BIA, and never loaned Longs any emergency operating money as authorized by
25 CFR 103.22.

The Huber cash flows approved by everyone October 28, show that $40,000 of the
$70,000 operating loan was needed just a few days later in November. (Tr. Ex. 8A) At the
meeting on October 28, Ronnie Long stated that he needed the money right away before winter
storms hit to move hay some twenty miles from the fields where it was baled to the cattle located
in the winter breaks on Ronnie Long’s Indian Range Unit. Ronnie Long also requested $2,000
of the operating loan to purchase insurance on the cattle. It is undisputed that the Bank never
advanced the Longs any of the $70,000 operating funds as promised. (Tr. 358) The Bank never
loaned any of the $37,500 to buy cattle as promised. If the Bank had advanced $2,000, the
isurance would have covered the cattle loss. (Tr. 156)

The Bank could have made an emergency loan under the CFR of 10% of the existing loan
guarantee, for an immediate loan of $42,800 automatically guaranteed by BIA to feed and care
for the livestock. (Tr. 355) (Tr. Ex. 11) Such emergency loan would be automatically guaranteed
by the existing 84% BIA guarantee to preserve the collateral. (Tr. 291) The Bank did not make
an emergency loan to move the hay to the cattle or to insure the cattle. (Tr. 290, 359-360) In
December before Christmas, Ronnie Long and John Lemke of the CRST Planning Office called
the Bank and requested that the Bank make a CFR emergency feed loan under the existing BIA
guarantee to protect the cattle. (Tr. 292) The Bank made no response to the BIA, the Longs, or to

the CRST Planning Office.



At trial the Longs agreed that the Bank was in bad faith in not promptly preparing the
agreement and securing BIA approval within a few days after the October 28 meeting when
everyone agreed, including the BIA. At trial the Bank offered no testimony to explain why it
took the Bank from October 29, to December 3, a period of five weeks to get the agreements
ready to sign (Tr. Exs. 6, 7), or why it took another week to send the application to the BIA, or
why the Bank modified the Huber cash flows. Seven weeks went by from October 28, when
everyone approved the plan and Huber’s cash flows, until the Bank finally sent the application to
the BIA. This period of time was critical to the Longs to obtain operating funds so they could
move the hay to the cattle and prepare for the coming winter storms.

Ronnie Long requested and was told on December 5, that he would receive his operating
loan so he could pay for moving his hay to his cattle located in winter pastures on his CRST
lease twenty miles away. (Long Aff. para. 17, Tr. 150-153) Ronnie Long made several requests
to the Bank in November and December for a release of operating loan funds so he could move
hay to the cattle in preparation for winter storms. (Long Aff. para. 17, Tr. 291) A serious winter
blizzard hit the area January 15-16, 1997, with deep snow, strong wind, and below zero
temperatures. The hungry cattle left the protection of the wooded draws in the storm searching
for something to eat and died on the unprotected prairie. The Longs lost 277 of 286 calves, and
230 of 349 cows, and several horses. (Tr. Ex. 14) The Longs set out their cattle loss damages of
$1,236,792 on Trial Exhibit 23. If hay had been available in the wooded draws, the cattle would
not have left the protected draws and would have survived. (Tr. 158) If money had been made
available by the Bank from the promised operating loan or CFR emergency funds, insurance

would have been purchased, and the Longs would not have suffered the substantial loss.
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It was undisputed at trial that from October when the Loan Agreement and Huber cash
flow were approved by everyone (Tr. Ex. 8A) through January 15, when the cattle died, the Bank
never released to the Longs any of the promised $70,000 operating loan, or any of the promised
$37,500 cattle purchase loan, or any emergency funds anthorized by the CFR.

In June of 1999, the Bank sent a letter to the CRST Court requesting that the CRST Court
serve a Notice to Quit on Ronnie Long describing the entire 2,230 acres. The CRST Court
accommuodated the Bank. The request was approved ex parte by Chief Judge Bluespruce on
June 15, 1999, and was served on the Longs by the CRST Court on June 16, 1999. (Tr. Ex. 20)
(Long Aff. para. 24, Att. 10) The Bank voluntarily came into the CRST Court requesting the
assistance of the Court without reserving any objection or reservation to the jurisdiction of the
CRST Court over the Bank as party to such eviction action. (Long Aff. para. 24, Att. 10)
Ronnie and Lila Long and their children did not move off the land and did not remove their
cattle, machinery, crops, or hay off of the 2,230 acres of land.

The pleadings filed in CRST trial court are attached to the Defendants’ Brief in Support
of Defendants’ Motion for Summary Judgment and Mr. Simon’s Affidavit as attachments:

(1) the Bank’s letter to CRST trial court enclosing Notice to Quit to Ronnie Long (Long Aff.,
Atts. 9 and 10}, (2) Longs’ Complaint and Amended Complaint (Simon Aff., Atts. 18, 20),
(3) CRST Opinion (Simon Aff., Att. 19), (4) Jury Verdicis (Long Aff., Att. 1), (5) CRST
Judgment (Long Aff., Att. 14), CRST Supplemental judgment (Long Aff., Att. 15), and

(6) CRST Court of Appeals Memorandum Opinion and Order (Long. Aff., Att. 16).

The Longs’ cause of action for discrimination was not tried at the trial court level based
ona42 U.S.C. 1981 claim. The Bank’s statement is not true. When questioned by CRST

Appellate Chief Judge Frank R. Pommersheim on this point, Bank counsel stated: “So in the
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federal case, (Nevada v. Hicks) it came out specifically - - and not to say that the Plaintiff
(Longs) has brought forth specifically, 42 U.S.C. 1981. They haven’t. But the allegations they
have made would be taken care of under that statute, or possibly under a state statute.” (Oral |
Argument, Tr. 13)

At trial the Longs presented four claims: (1) breach of contract, (2) contractual bad faith,
(3) discrimination, and (4) self help. The jury decided in favor of the Longs on breach of
contract, contractual bad faith and discrimination, and decided for the Bank on self help. The
Bank has acknowledged that the Tribal court has jurisdiction over the claims of the Longs except
for the discrimination claim. The Bank’s counsel stated: “And I think it’s lacking subject matter
jurisdiction, and that was for discrimination.” (Oral Argument Tr. 12) The Bank stated in its
Motion for Summary Judgment in the Tribal court: “the Court has jurisdiction over the subject
matter of this action.” (Motion for S.J. para. 2) The Bank’s jurisdictional claim is limited in
scope to the argument that the CRST Tribal Court does not have jurisdiction over the Longs’
discrimination claim. (Bank Appellate Brief pp. 6-9) In the CRST Tribal Court the Bank did not
challenge the jurisdiction of the Tribal court over the Longs’ claims against the Bank, except for
the discrimination claim.

The Longs did not allege 42 U.S.C. sec. 1981 or any federal statute in their Amended
Complaint as a basis for the discrimination claim. (Simon Aff., Att. 20, pp. 9-10) The Bank did
not question the basis in law for the Longs’ discrimination claim through a motion to dismiss for
failure to state a claim on which relief might be granted. There were no jury instructions
provided to the Tribal court jury on any claimed federal cause of action for discrimination under

42 U.S.C. sec. 1981.
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The factual basis for the Longs’ discrimination claim was based on the Bank’s agreement
in 1996 to sell the land back to them on favorable terms on a bank financed contract for deed.
The Bank then withdrew its agreement to sell the land back to the Longs on a 20 year contract
for deed because it involved an “Indian owned entity” and related *“jurisdictional problems.” (Tr.
Ex. 4) (Tr. 106-7, 330) The Bank’s changed agreement contained in the Lease With Option to
Purchase required the Longs to make payment of $468,000 in full in a lump sum in two years.
The Longs are Native Americans and enrolled members of the CRST, and the Company was
100% Indian owned in 1996 by Ronnie and Lila Long. After the Bank refused to sell the land
back to them on favorable bank financed contract for deed, the Bank then sold the land to non-
Indians who are non-tribal members on favorable terms on a contract for deed where the FSA
government payments made the contract for deed payments. The Longs claimed they were
discriminated against because the Bank denied them the privilege of favorable Bank financing
through a contract for deed solely because of their status as Indians and tribal members.

The legal basis for the discrimination claims in Tribal court was tribal law. CRST By-
Laws, Art. V sec. 1(c) provides that trial courts “have jurisdiction over claims and disputes
arising on the reservation,” including “tortous conduct” under C.R.C. sec. 1-4-3(2)D, which
provides jurisdiction over a “tortous act” or “tortous conduct” for any “civil cause of action
arising from such act or conduct.”

The legal basis for the discrimination claim in Tribal court is the rule stated by the

Supreme Court in Montana v. United States, 450 U.S. 544, 565 (1981). After stating the general

rule of no jurisdiction over non-members, the Supreme Court in Montana stated that “to be sure,
Indian tribes retain inherent power to exercise some forms of civil jurisdiction over non-Indian

fee lands.” 450 U.S. at 565. The first exception established by the Supreme Court is: “the
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activities of non-members who enter consensual relationships with the tribe or its members,
through commercial dealing, contracts, leases, or other arrangements.” The activities of the
Bank in this case fit the first exception and provide the Tribal court with jurisdiction over the
Longs’ claims. Under the facts of this case, the Tribal court had jurisdiction over the tortous
conduct of the Bank in the form of the Longs’ claim of discrimination.

Dated this 22™ day of December, 2005.

S 5

RONNIE LONG &

/

LICA LONG

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 22™ day of December, 2005.

(Goprizy ] Hevde,

- NOTARY PUBLIC

JAE‘!ES P. HURLEY t | .. o My Commission Expires
lg‘% NOTARY PUBLIC ?% : My Commission Expires:_ " Ociober 8, 2006
)

State of South Dakota ™ ¢

(SE4
L

- e o

14




INDEX OF ATTACHMENTSTO
SECOND AFFIDAVIT OF RONNIE AND LILA LONG
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SECURi, AGREEMENT - GENER A FORM

September 28, i 19..08
) © (Dote}

. 1. PARTIES — PROPERTY) The undersignad Debtor {ielntly ond severally} for valve received hercby granls to the under:ignfd Secvred Parly of
Lender, o securlty inlares) in the fellowing daseribed propertyr

All equipment, all machinery, all farm vehicles, all crops, all feed and grainf all
livestoclk, all supplies used ot produced in farming operatijons, all con?ract rights
and accounts, all warehouse receipts or other documents of title affecting such goods,
and all rights of debtor or payments in kind and ASCS farm program payments under the
terms set between the debtor and, the U.S. Dept. of Ag., whether now owned or here-
after acquired. .

alb products of, addittons to ond rsplacements theradf and all odcessories, accassions, parts ond equipment now or hereolter alfixed therels or yied Vin
connection therewith, ond the proceeds of all property secured heroby ox set oul balow. - : -

2. IF FARM PRODUCTS, CROPS OR FIXTURES ARE COULATERALL I “thls instrument Includes Iiw.-.:ruck. ‘lher_l ‘as a_t_idili_onol collateral, _Deb.!or.m.
signs, transfers and conveys to Secured Pdrty o securlly intecest in ond to all Incracse and lssua thereof and odditions, replotements ond substitutions

c oil water priviféges, ard oll squipment, used in ‘faeding aid hondling sald livestock ond

therefor, and all fesd, both hay and graln, owned by Debtor, n | anc "
also-all of Debtor’s right, tiile and Interest in oll leases coverlng londs for pasture end grozing puiposes. H ¢rops, this agreement Includes annual and

perenniod craps and: products thereof growing or planted on tha followlng described property; sither belors or sfter horvest and ol odditions ond subslis
tutians therelor; or if the préperty coverad hereby is livastock, crops or {lxtures; it s and will be localed on the lollowing desceibed propetty in

4 - ' Covnty, Sauth Dokato:

3. IF IRVENTORY IS5 COLLATERAL: If Ihis Instrument incfudes Inveniory then Debtor haraby grants to lender o security ‘interett in all of hit

Inventary now owned ar hersofter acquired ond of) replacaments, s_ul:lrilulihns.‘und additions therote, ond a_ securlty interest in all of Deblor's, mer.
cthandise, raw materials, work In procexs ond flnished products, : . ! i

A. Upon execution of this agresment and. upon rsquast of Sacured Party at any lime whila tha indebtedness hereby secured remoins unpoid,
Debicr will furnish to Secured Party .o tignad statement, In form satisfactory to Securad Porly, shawing the current status of tha inventary herein secured
fe Include for any given peried designated by Secused Party the opening Inventory, inventory ocquired, tnventory sofd and delivered, inventory .sold and
held for future delivery, inventory returned or repostessed, Inventary used ar conwmed In, Deblor's busines, and closing inventory.

"B.If of cny given lime the value of the calloteral does not
Debtor shall ot once pay the excess of indebledness lo Secured Party

4, OBLIGATIONS SECURED — OPEN END:

equaf or exceed the tolol amount of indebledness of Debtor to Securad Party,
of transfer additlonal colloteral to Secured Party lo meet Secured Porly’s su?lsfcclinr_n.

This securlty interest Is glven ta secure the perfermance of the covenants ond agreements hereln el

' forth and for the poyment of on Indebtednsss in the lace omount of §,

hotels) or other instrument{s) axecuted by Deblor payable to the order of said Setwred Parr

o3 evidenced by o promlsery
ond for the paymens of oll cxtensions and rengwals thereof ond oll chan

Y a5 therein provided, and with Interast o therein set forih

9¢s In form of said indebledness which may be from time to fime effected by
ogreement beween, Secured Parly and, Deblor; and for all odvantes mode by Secured Porly for foxes, lavies, premivms of inturence and repairs to or

maintenance of said collateral ér 1o pratect ar preserve the tollatéral yeinst the claims of others and alf money heretolore ond hereofter advanced by
. Secured Porly at his oplion to or for the .accownt of Debtor and oll other .present or future, direct ar confingent liobllities of Debtor to Secured Porty
of any noture whatsoaver and however arising or ocqvired; and for intsrest on any monéy e;ipended by Secured Party for taxes, levies and repairs to
of maintenance of said collaleral. AHl sums poyable heceunder sholl be_ paid ot the ploce stated in the promlssery note o instryment, il ony, ond if

none then of the location, of the Secured Porly o3 stated below, and i nonc, shen at the ploce of residence of the Sccured Party. )
3.

This instrument shall be void Upan poyment of all obligations secy
6. INFORMATIONAL (Check ons or more).
D The oddress of the Deblor, below, s his residence.

red hereby,

I:g Such oddrass is the Debtors chief ploce of businers,
D Such addrass is where the Collateral is kept. . E] Debtor Is a nan-resident of South Dakota,

7. USE OF PROPERTY: Debror warrants,
Equipment_

covencnis ond ogrees thot: The pro‘p‘erly is or is o be used by Debtor -primerily (check 1, 2 ar 3);’ :

‘Farm Products
1. In business

n " T D " 2. For penenal, family 3. ln farming operations,
- . or hewsehold purpoiss;

D Inventory B Farm Equlp‘urnem

B PU?FDSE: The security Interest heraln js glven on this :oll‘aleru‘l H for o purché:so mu;"\ey loan; D o;harwise. T
#. THIS AGREEMENT SPECIFICALLY

INCLUDES ALL OF THE ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 5ET FORTH OM THE REVERSE SIDE REREOF, THE SAME ;
BEING INCORPORATED MEREIN Y REFERVENCE. PEBTOR ACKNOWAEDGES RECEIPT OF A COPY QF THIS, COMTRACT FULLY COMPLETED.

o T BANE OF HOVEN E :
s 7 ;&ﬂﬂ—zﬂ I—IOVEN%%T%FDEEXgE 57450 C o
enneth Lo g . {Debtor) ‘ . _— 7
Naxine Long ’ y (Debtor) o [/2/)4/ M

A dRojnie Long" © (bebter) © —‘55&1 Bohr, VP . {(Secured Porty}

Lila Long ¥ ~7© _ {Debtor) S :
[y Nuerb . - : / ;

- Sla erggg e snd Streetd : : -_ o
""" ‘ Box_186 _ Timber Lake, S0 - . . . o o i ;
iciry) ‘ ' :

Devey South Dakota

Qovntyt . (State) :

*Considar she destrability of joinder of spouse. . 7 ' 0 0’2 9 6 . ;

R0k torte
lvrm NERitr  SOUTH DAKOTA SiCuRiTY AGREEMENT



GUARANTY

HOVEN SB
- City) [Statet

APRTL 1, 1997
y of which are hereby acknowledged, and to in-

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficienc
duce BANK OF HOVEN, P.O. BOX 7, HOVEN, SD §7450

{herein, with its participants, successors and assigns, called “Lender®), at its option, at any time or from time to
tima to make loans or extend other accommodations to or for the account of _ LONG FAMITY LAND & CATTLE

0. INC,
therein called “Borrower”} or to engage in any other transactions with Borrower, the Undersigned hereby ahbsolutely
and unconditionally guarantees to Lender the full and prompt payment when due, whether at maturity or earlier by
reason of acceleration or otharwise, of the debts, liabilities and obligations described as follows:

ALl this B2 is checked, the Undersigned guarantess ta Lender the payment and performance of the debt, lia-
bility or obligation of Borrower to Lender evidenced by or arising out of the following: LOANS TO LONG
FAMITY IAND AND CATTLE
renewals or replacements thereof (hereinafter referred to as the "Indebtedness"). .

B.If this {J is checked, the Undersigned guarantees to Lender the payment and performance of each and
every debt, liability and obligation of every type and description which Borrower may now or at any time
hereafter owe to Lender {whether such debt, liability or obligation now exists or is hereafter created ar
incurred, and whether it is or may be direct or indirect, due or to become due, absolute or contingent,
primary or secondary, liquidated ar unliquidated, or joint, several, or jeint and several; all such debts,
tiabilities and obligations being hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Indebtedness™), Without limitation,
this guaranty includes the following described debris):

. C.

and any extensions,

The term "Indebtedness® as used in this guaranty shall not include any obligations entered into between

Borrower and Lender after the date hereof (including any extensions, renewals or reglacements of such
obligations} for which Borrower meets the Lender's standard of creditworthiness based on Barrower's own
assets and income without the addition of a guaranty, or for which a
someone other than the joint Undersigned to guaranty the obligation.

The Undersigned further acknowledges and agrees with Lender that:

1. Nao act or thing need occur to establish tha liabilit
full payment and discharge of all indebtedness, shall in
or release the liability of the Undersigned hereunder.

2, This is an absolute, unconditional and continuing guaranty of payment of the indebtedness and shall continue
to be in force and be binding upon the Undersigned, whether or not all Indebtedness is paid in full, until this
guaranty is revoked by written notice actually received by the Lender, and such revocation shall not be effective as
to Indebtedness axisting or committed for at the time of actual receipt of such notice by the Lender, or as to any
renewals, extensions and refinancings thereof, If there be mare than one Undersigned, such revocation shall be
effectiva only as to the one so revoking. The death or incompetence of the Undersigned shail not revoke this
guaranty, except upon actual receipt of written notice thereof by Lender and then only as to the decedent or the
incompetent and only prospectively, as to future transactions, as herein set forth.

3. If the Undersigned shall be dissolved, shall dis, or shall be or become insolvent [however defined) or revoke
this guaranty, then the Lender shall have the right to declare immediately due and payable, and the Undersigned
will forthwith pay to the Lender, tha full amount of all Indebtedness, whether due and payable or unmatured. If the
Undersigned voluntarily commences or there is commenced inveluntarily against the Undersigned a case under the

United States Bankruptcy Cade, the full amount of all Indebtedness, whether due and payabla or unmatured, shall
be immediately due and payable without demand or notice thereof.

y of the Undersigned hereunder, and no act or thing, except
any way exonerate the Undersigned or modify, reduce, limit

4. The liability of the Undersigned hereunder shall be limited to a principal amount of $ UNLIMITED
(if unlimited or if no amount is stated, the Undersigned shall be liable for all Indebtedness,
to amount), plus accrued interest therson and all attorneys’ fees, collection costs and enforcement axpenses
referable therets. Indebtedness may be creatad and continued in any amount, whether or not in excess of such
principal amount, without affecting or impairing the liability of the Undersigned hereunder. The Lender may apply
any sums received by or available to Lender on account of the Indebtedness from Barrower or any ather person
{except the Undersigned), from their properties, out of any coliateral security or from any othar source to payment
of the excess. Such application of receipts shall’ not reduce, affect or impair the liability of the Undersigned
hereunder. [f the liability of the Undersigned is limited to a stated amount pursuant to this paragraph 4, any
payment made by the Undersigned under this guaranty shall be effective to reduce or discharge such liability only if
accompanied by a written transmittal document, received by the Lender, advising the Lender that such payment is
made under this guaranty for such purposa.

5. The Undarsigned wiil pay or reimburse Landar for all costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees

and legal expenses) incurred by Lender in connection with the protection, defense or enforcement of this guaranty
in any litigation or bankruptcy or insolvency proceadings.

This guaranty includes the additional provisions on page 2, all of which are made a part hereot.

without any limitation as

This guaranty is [J unsecured; [ secured by a mortgage or security agreement dated
0O secured by

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this guaranty has been duly executedbyndersigned the day and vyear first above

written. - C=”

guaranty is required but Borrower chooses

RONNIE LONG =

Xdo&a/‘ﬂ"?ﬁrf

TTTH YA

- BH 0623
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e GUARANTY —

o e
tn consideration of financial accomodations given or to be given or continued to Maxine Long

. herein called “Borrower” by ___ Bank of Hoven, A SD Corporation herein cafled "Bank™, the undersigned irravocably ang

unconditionally guarantee to the Bank, payment when due, whether by acceleration ar otherwise, of any and alt Liablilities of the Borrower
as defined balow to the Bank, together with all interest thereon: all attorneys’ tees, cgsts, and expenses of colleciion Incurred by the Bank
in entorcing any of such Liabilities of the Borrower; and all altorneys' fees, costs, ahd expenses incurred by the Bank in foreclosing, pre-

serving, protecting, retaking, holding, and selling of any collateral as a result of the enforcement or foreclosure of any security interest or
maorigage given by Borrower to Bank.

The term "Liabilities of the Borrower” shall mean and include:

A O checked, all indebtedness, liabilities or obligations, direct or contingent, sacured or unsecured, joint, several, or joint and several,
of the Borrower 1o Bank, created or Incurred for any purpose whatsoever, now existing or hereafter arising, due or to become due 1o, or
held or to be held, by the Bank for its own account or as agent for another or others, whether created or incurred directly or acquired by
assignment or otherwise, {THERE IS NOT A LIMIT TO THE AMOUNTS COVERED BY THIS GUARANTY).

8. Kl if checked, the debls, fiabilities, or obligations, direct or contingent, secured or unsecured, joint, several, or joint or severai of the
Borrower to Bank evidenced by the following: _Subject to terms of collateral note

and any extensions, renewals, modifications or replacements theraof, (THIS GUARANTY IS LIMITED TO § 322,967.26 )

The undersigned waive notice of the following: acceptance of this Guaranty and notice of the incurring of any of the Liabilities of the
Borrower; presentment, demand for payment, protest, notice of protest, notice of dishonor or nonpayment of any instrument evidencing
any of the Liabilities of the Borrower; notice of any alleged default, or notice of right to cure any default with respect to any of the Liabili-
ties of the Borrower to the Bank; and notice of any lawsuit filed by or on behalf of the Bank against Borrower, or the taking of any other
action by the Bank against, and any other notice to, any party liable for any of the Liabilities of Borrower (ircluding the undersigned)

The Bank may at any time and from time to time {whethes or not after revocation or termination of this Guaranty) without the consent

of, or notice to, the undersigned; without incurring responsibiiity to the undersigned; and without impairing or releasing the obligations of
the undersigned hereunder, do one or more of the following:

(1) renew, alter, or change in any manner the terms of any instrument evidencing any of the Liabilities of the Barrower, including any
change in a) the rate of interest, and b) place, terms, or time of payment of any debt, liability, or obligation incurred directly or indirectly
in respect thereof. This Guaranty shall app?ly to the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank as so changed, extended, renewad, or altered;

(2) sell, exchange, substitute, release, surrender, realize upon, or otherwise deal with in any manner and in any order any property by
whomsoever at any time pledged, mortgaged, or otherwise securing any of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank hereby guaranteed

or any debts, liabilities or obligations (including any of those hereunder) incurred directly or indirectly in respect thereof or hereof, and/or
exercise any right of setoff it may have.

(3) exercise or refrain from exercising any rights againist the Borrower or others {including the undersigned) or otherwise act or refrain
from acting:;

(4) settle or compromise any of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank hereby guaranteed or any security therefor, ar any debt,
liakility, or obtigation (including any of those hereunder) incurred directly or indirectly in respect thereof or hereof, and may subordinate
the payment of all ar any part of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the payment of any debt, liabitity, or obligation (whethar due or not) of
the Borrower to creditors of the Borrower other than the Bank and the undersigned; and

(5) apply any sums by whomsoever paid or howsoever realized to any Liabitities of the Borrower {regardless of the origin thereof) to
the Bank, regardless of the nature of any of the Liabilities of the Borrower 10 the Bank which remain unpaid and regardless of the Borrow-
ers’ application or use of the consideration, if any, received in connection with any of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank.

No invalidity, irregularity, or unenforceability of all or any part of the Liabilities of the Borfower to the Bank hereby guaranteed, or in

any of the documents securing all or any part of the Liabilities of the Borrower, shali affect, impair, or be a defense to this Guaranty, and
this Guaranty is a primary obligation of the undersigned.

The undersigned agree that the obligations and guaranty of the undersigned and the rights of the Bank in any collaterai by whemsoever
at any time pledged, conveyed, or morigaged fo secure, or howsoever securing any of the liabilities of the Borrower, shall not be released,
discharged, or in any way aiffected, nor shall the undersigned have any rights against the Bank, by reason of the fact that (i} a valid or
perfected lien, security interast, or encumbrance in any of the collateral may not be conveyed to, oblained by, or created in favor of Bank;
{ii) any of the collateral may be subject to equities or defenses or claims in favor of others or may be invalid or defective in any way, (iii)

the value of any of the collateral, or the tfinancial condition of the Borrower, of any obligor, of any guarantor, or any of the collateral may

not have been correctly estimated or may have changed or may hereafter change; or {iv) there is any deterioration, waste, or loss by fire,
theft, or otherwise of any of the coliateral.

The undersigned agree that the Bank shall not be required to resort first for payment to the Barrower, or other persans or corporations,
their properties or estates, whether by lawsuit or otherwise, before erdorcing this Guaranty. The undersigned further agree that Bank shali
not be required to have any collateral ar security applied to Liabilities of the Borrower (including other guaranties) before enforcing this
Guaranty. Theé undersigned further agree that the Bank shall have a general lien on and security interest in and a right of setoff against
alt property of the undersigned including without limitation atl deposits, cash, securities, notes, cash equivalents, or certificates of depasit
now or hereafter in the Bank's possession or on deposit with the Bank, whether heid in a general or special acount, or for safekeeping or
otherwise, and such lien, secuity interest, and right of setoff may be enforced or exercised without demand upon or notice to the undersigned.

If box A is checked above, this Guaranty is a continuing one and atl of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank to which it applies or
may apply under the terms hereof shali be conclusively presumed to have been created in reliance hereon. As to each of the undersigned,
this Guaranty shall continue until written notice of revocation sigred by such undersigned, or until written notice of the death of such
undersigned shall in each case have been actually received by the Bank, notwithstanding revocation by, or the death of, or complete or
partial release for any cause of, any one or more of the remainder of the undersigned, or of the Borrower, or of anyane liable or obligated
in any manner for any of the Liakilities of the Borrower hereby guaranteed or for the debts, liahilities, or obligations (inciuding those here-
under} incurred directly or ingirectly in respect thereof ar hereof. No revocation or termination hereof shall affect in any manner rights
arising under this Guaranaty with respect to {a) Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank which shall have been created, contracted, assumed,
or incurred prior to veceipt by the Bank of written notice of such revoeation or termination or (b) Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank
which shall have been created, contracted, assumed, or incurred afler receipt of such writien notice pursuant to any contract entered into
by the Bank pricr.to receipt of such notice; and the sole effect of revacation or termination hereof shall be to exciude from this Guaranty
Liabllities of the Borrower to the Bank thereafter arising which are unconnected with Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank arising or
transactions entered into befare the date of revocation or termination.
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-or order of any court or administrative body: naving jurlsdiction over the Bank or any of its prop

- that any such Judgment, decree, order, settlement, or compromise shall be binding upon the un

e e Y N S
]

P e

fy —
I claim is ever made upon the Bank for v ment or recovery of any amount or amounts rec
of any of the Liabllities of the Borrower to . 3ank and the Bank repays all or part of said an.

*d by the Bank In payment or on account
«t by reason of (a) any judgment, decree,
érty, or (b} any settlement or compromise
and In such event the undersigned agree

dersigned, notwithstanding any revocation
hereof or the cancellation of any note or other instrument avidencing any of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bark, and the under-

signed shall be and remain liable to the Bank hersunder for the amount so repaid or recovered to the same extent as If such amount had
never originally been recelved by the Bank, ’

Any acknowledgment or new promise, whether by payment of princlpal or interest or otherwise and whather by the Borrower or others
(including the undersigned), with respect to any of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank shall, if the statute of limitations in favor of
the undersigned against the Bank shall have commenced to run, toll the running of such statute of limitations and, it the period of such
statute of limitations shall have expired, pravent the operation of such statute of flimitations.

No delay on the part of the Bank in exercising any of its options, powers, or rights, or partial or singte exercise thereof, shall constitute
a waiver thereof. No walver of any of its rights hereunder, and no moditication or amendment of this Guaranty, shall be deemed to be
made by the Bank unless the same shall be in writing, duly signed on behalf of the Bank, and each such waiver, if any, shall apply only

with respect to the specific instance involved, and shall in no way impair the rights of the Bank or the obligations of the undersigned to
the Bank in any other respect.at any other time.

The undersigned waive all rights of subrogation to Bank's rights against the Borrower until all of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the
Bank guaranteed hereunder shait have been fully paid and discharged.

This Guaranty and the rights and cbligations of the Bank and of the undersigned hereunder shall be govered and construed in accordance

with the laws of the State of _30uth Dakota » and this Guaranty is binding upon the undersigned, his, her, their, or its
executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of the Bank, its successars, or assigns.

The undersigned, if more than one, shall be jointly and severaily liable hereunder and the term "undersigned” wherever used herein shalf
mean the undersigned or any one or mare of them. Anyone signing this Guaranty shall be bound hereby, whether or not anyone else
signs this Guaranty at any time. The term “Bank” includes any agent of the Bank acting for it.

If any of the provisions of this Guaranty shall contravene or be held invalid under the laws of the applicable jurisdiction, this Guaranty

shall be construed as if not containing those provisions and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced
accordingly.

of any such claim effected by the Bank with any such claimant (including the Borrower), then

In addition to the other pravisions contained herein, this Guaranty is secured by

Dated: September 28, 19 88
yj/f@éf/wf/ obﬂd—ﬂ/?-/z:r ' Box 186, Timber Lake, SD 57656
Maxine Long ﬁ (Address)

{Address)

INDIVIDUAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of _;_%Cﬂ l:tﬂ's DO—O’L&L@. )

) ss.
County of pOUﬂ_/\.J )
On this _24% day of Scm [raals =8 .19 g g . before me , a Notary Public, persenally appeared
\mCiJLLm_j. LLYY\ q . to me known to be the identical person(s) who executed the

foregeing instrument, and it is'executed as a vofuntary act and deed.

Ly ‘ PR Nolar?'Public
:N/ NANCY K. RAUSCH UATY S DAKV
e irag- Notary Public, POTTER COUNTY, S. DAK,
My Commission expires: “MyTommission EXpires APRIL 10, 1993

Cuncﬁ /(- PQJ_A.azCﬂ\

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of : )
' ) ss.
County of )
On this day of .18 , before me , a Natary Public, personally appeared
. to me personally known, who being by ms duly sworn
did say that he/she is the of '

a Corporation; that the seal affixed to the instrument is the seat of said Corporation {or that no seal has been provided by said Corpora-
tion); that said instrument was signed (and sealed) on behalf of said Corporation by authority of its Board of Directors; and the said
acknowledged the execution of said instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said Corporation.

Natary Public

My Commission expires:
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. unconditionally- guarantee to the Bank, payment when dus, whether by acceleration or otherwise,
- as defined below to the Bank, {ogether with all interest thereon; all attorneys' fees, costs, and exp

=
=

7 .. GUARANTY -
. i
In consideration of financlal accomodations givan or to be given or continued to Long Fai,.ly Land & Cattle Co.y, Inc

horein called “Borrower” by Bank of Hoven herein called "Bank", the undersigned irrevacably ang
of any and all Liabilities of the Borrower
enses of collection incurred by the Bank
ncurred by the Bank in foreclosing, pre-
or foreclosure of any security interest or

in enforcing any of such Liabilities of the Borrower; and all attornays’ fees, costs, and expenses |

serving, protecting, retaking, holding, and selling of any collaterai as a result of the enforcement
mortgage given by Borrower to Bank. :

The term "Liabilities of the Borrower” shall mean and include:

assignment or otherwise. (THERE IS NOT A LIMIT TO THE AMOUNTS COVERED BY THIS GUARANTY).

B. O if checked, the debts, liabilities, or obligations, direct or contingent, secured or unsecured,

joint, several, or joint or several of the
Borrower to Bank evidenced by the following:

and any extensions, renewals, modifications or replacements thereof. (THIS GUARANTY IS LIMITED TO § ).

The undersigned waive notice of the following: acceptance of this Guaranty and notice of the incurring of any of the Liabiliies of the
Borrower; presentment, demand for payment, protest, notice of protest i

The Bank may at any time and from time to time {whether or not after revocation or termination of this Guaranty) without the consent

of, or notice to, the undersigned; without incurring responsibility to the undersigned; and without impairing or refeasing the obligations of
the undersigned hereunder, do one or more of the following:

(1) renew, alter, or change in any manner the terms of any instrument evidencing any of the Liabilities of the Borrower, including any
change in a) the rate of interest, and b) place, terms, or time of payment of any debt, liability, or obligation incurred directly or indirectly
in respect thereof. This Guaranty shalt apply to the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank as so changed, extended, renewed, or altered:

{3} exercise or refrain from exercising. any rights against the Barrower or others {including the undersigned) or otherwise act or refrain
from acting;

(4) settle or compromise any of the Liabilities of the Borrower fo the Bank hereby guaranieed or any security therefar, or any debt,
liability, or obligation (including any of those hereunder} incurred directly or indirectly in respect thereof or hereof, and may subordinate
the payment of all or any part of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the payment ot any debt, liability, or obligation (whether due or not} of
the Borrower 10 creditors of the Borrower other than the Bank and the undersigned; and

(5) apply any sums by whomsoever paid or howsoever realized to any Liabilities of the Barrower (regardiess of the origin thereof) to
the Bank, regardless of the nature of any of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank which remain unpaid and regardless of the Borrow-
ers’ application or use of the consideration, if any, received in connection with any of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank.

Ne invatidity, irregularity, or unenforceability of all or any part of the Liabitities of the B
any of the documents securing all or any part of the Liabilities of the Borrower, shall affect
this Guaranty is a primary obiigation of the undersigned.

orrower to the Bank hereby guaranteed, or in
. impair, or be a defense to this Guaranty, and

The undersigned agree that the obligations and guaranty of the undersigned and the rights of the Bank in any collateral by whomsoever
at any time pledged, conveyed, or mortgaged to secure, or howsoever securing any of the liabilities of the Borrower, shall not be released,
discharged, or in any way affected, nor shall the undersigned have any rights against the Bank, by reason of the fact that (i) a valid or
perfected lien, sacurity interest, or encumbrance in-any of the collateral may not be conveyed to, oblained by, or created in favor of Bank;
(ify any of the collateral may be subject to equities or defenses or claims in favar of others of may be invalid ¢or defective in any way; (iii)
the value of any of the collateral, or the financial condition of the Borrower, of any aobligor, of any guarantor, or any of tite pollateral may

not have been correctly estimated or may have changed or may hereafter change; or (iv) there is any deterioration, waste, or loss by fire,
theit, or otherwise of any of the coilateral.

The undersigned agree that the Bank shall not be required to resort first for payment to the Borrower, or other persans or corporations,
their properties or estates, whether by lawsuit or otherwise, before enforcing this Guaranty. The undersigned further agree that Bank shall
not be required to have any collateral or security applied to Liakilities of the Borrower (including other guaranties) before
Guaranty. The .undersigned further agree that the Bank shali have a general lien on and security interest in and a right of

all property of the undersigned including without limitation all deposits, cash, securities, notes, cash equivalents, or certificates of deposit

~now of hereafter in the Bank's possession or on deposit with the Bank, whether held in a general or special acount, or for safekeeping or

otherwise, and such lien, secuity interest, and right of setoff may be enforced or exercised without demand upon or notice to the undersigned.

if box A is checked abovs, this Guaranty is a continuing one and all of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank to whish it applies or
may apply under the terms hereof shall be conciusively presumed to have been created in reliance hereon. As to each of the undersigned,
this Guaranty shall continue until written notice of revecation signed by such undersigned, or until written notice of the death of sugh
undersigned shall in each case have been actually received by the Bank, notwithstanding revocation by, or the death of, or complete or
partial release for any cause of, any one or more of the remainder of the undersigned, or of the Borrower, or of anyone fiable or obligated
in any manner for any of the Liabilities of the Borrower hereby guaranteed or for the debts, fiabilities, or obligations (including those here-
under) incurred directly or indirectly in respect thereof or hereotf. No revocation or termination hereof shall atfect in any manner rights
arising under this Guaranty with respact to {a} Liabilities of the Borrower to the Bank which shall have been created, contracted, assumed,

or incurred prior to receipt by the Bank of written notice of such revocation or termination or (b} Liabilities of the Barrower to the Bank
which shall have been created, contracted, assumed i i
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it clalm is ever made upon the Bt fepayment or recovery of any amount or amoul——sceived by the Bank in

s the Bank and the Bank repays all or part of s mount by reason of
-or order of any court or adminlstrative.” .ody having jurisdiction over the Bank ar any ot property,

payment or on account
{a) any judgment, decree,

Any acknowledgment or new promise, whether by payment of principal or interest or otherwise and w
{Including the undersigned), with respect to any of the Liabllities of the Borrower to the Bank shall, it
the undersigned against the Bank shall have commenced to run, toll the running of such statute of I
statute of limitations shail have expired, prevent the operation of such statute of limitations.

Ne delay on the part of the Bank in exerclsing any of its options, powers, or rights, or partial or single exercise t
a waiver thereof, No walver of any of its rights hereunder, and no modification or amendment of thig Guaranty, shall be deemed 1o be
made by the Bank unless the same shall be in writing, duly signed on behalf of the Bank, and each such waiver, if any, shali apply only
with respect to the specific instance involved, and shall In no way impair the rights of the Bank or the obligations of the undarsigned to
the Bank in any other respect at any other time.

The undersigned waive all rights of subrogation to Bank's rights a
Bank guaranteed hereunder shall have been fully paid and discharged,

This Guaranty and the rights and ob!igatiolrés of the Bank and of the undersigned hereunder shall ba govered and construed in accordance

with the laws of the Siate of _o0Uth Dakota : and this Guaranty fs binding upon the undersigned, his, her, their, or its
executors, administrators; successors, or assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of the Bank, its successors, or assigns,

. The undersigned, if more than one, shall be jointly and severaily liabla hereunder and the term “undersigned” wherever used herein shall
mean the undersigned or any one or more of them. Anyeone signing this Guaranty shall be bound hereby, whether or not anyone else
signs this Guaranty at any time. The term “Bank" includes any agent of the Bank acting for it.

If any of the provisions of this Guaranty shall contravene or be held invaiid under the laws of the

shall be construed as if not containing those provisions and the rights and obligations of
accordingly.

In addition to the other provisions contained herain, this Guaranty is secured by _all assets

hether by the Borrower or others
the statute of limitations in favor of
mitations and, if the period of such

hereof, shall constitute

gainst the Borrower untll all of the Liabilities of the Borrower to the

applicable jurisdiction, this Guaranty
the parties shall be canstrued and enforced

Dated: _ /5 1992

I e P, T,
X

{Address)

{Address)

INDIVIDUAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of South Dakota

) ss. E
County of Potter ) :
Onthis __9th day of March 19 92 beforeme. s Notary Public, personally appeared
Kenneth Long » to me known to be the identical person(s) who executed the
B foregoing instrument, and it is executed as a voluntary act and deed.

e e g Notary Public
. CH,-’%RLES ESIMON 5
sy Commission seaie. s Moty Public, FGTIER COUNTY. S, DAY
o ¥ Lommission expires: liﬂjﬂum.n!ubiunE.’.puubl"ﬁ::lﬁCHE.i§§5_",

CORPORATE ACKMOWLEDGEMENT

State of '

—

County of

On this day of

.18 . before me , a Notary Pubiic, personally appeared
. to me personally known, who being by me duly sworn

did say that he/she is the
a Corporation; that the seal aifixed to the instrument is the seal of said Corpor.
tion); that said instrument was signed (and sealed)

ation (or that no seal has been provided by said Corpora-
on behalf of said Corporation by authority of its Board of Directors; and the said
acknowledged the execution of said instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said Corporation.

Notary Public

F00 B . . N
; My Commission expires:
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MORTGAGE — COLLATERAL REAL ESTATE MORTGAGE

TINS MOKTRAGK, made thia 20tk dny of Septembor in the year
1p 88 by . Kenneth and Maxine Long , Rusband and Wife
of Dowey County and Stateof __South Dakgos ..y orlgugor 8,

"t __Dank of Hoven, A_South Bokoes Corporation, Bos 7

of __lloven P.O., Counly of __Potter
South Dakota

v— 20d 8lade of

Mortgagee_ _
WITNESSETH, that said Morlgagor.s

hereby movtgege__ 1o said Mortgagee e the follow.
gy deseribed pramises vivaled in the County of __Dewey

..... . and State of South
Dakotn, towit: Lot 7 snd South £0° of Lot B, Block 29, in the Town (ngw City) nf

Limbar_Lake, Dewey County, South Dakota, tappther with CALpetE drapnl,“ﬂ‘!mq__

CB._antenoa_snd_refrigerator,

e e —

ng secwrily for the payment Lo said morigagee wl__Hoven, Soutk Dakoba

of @ principal Aum nof fo excesd $_322,967,26 (n accordance with promissory notes, eredil
agreements, shecks, of any other {ndehledrens or commilments between Morlgagor and Morlgagee, whether or not
evidenced by a wrillen instrument or agreement, and whelhar or wol the sams exists s of the date hereqf, or {s
hareaflar erented or acquired by Morigages; all such indebledneoss and commifntenis being hereinafler referred lo
as the "Obligations," mard Obligntions nol fo bs in exceas O $.322,967.26 . ... bul nothing herein shall be
considered ar limiting the amounts whick shall b tecured when advanced to proteet the security.”

SE3 08 L i fr Pe3e

TUE DARTIES AGREE THAT THIS MORTGAGE CONSTITUTES A COLLATERAL REAL ESTATE
MORTCAGE PURSUANT TO SDCE 44-9-26,

Thin Mortgage shall, notwrithstanding the fact that Srom time to time during the term hereof no indebtodrery
shall he due from Morigagor to Morlgagen, corntitule o soniinning tien againat the Property for tha amount stated
harein. If of nny lime the indeblednesy due Mortpages is eero, the Mortiages shall, within ton days afler receint of
writlen demaid therefor by Morigagor, exccute and record o satisfaction of this Morlgege.

The original term of this Mortgngs {s five yours unless such term is crtended by the Aling of an Addendusm to

an addendum to thin Morignge, the effectivenass hereaf shall b continucd for five years ofler the daty of Rling this

Morignge wheroupan 4 shadl lapse wrica another addendum to this Mortgage continuing the offectivencss of its Hen

iz fled prior to such lapse, Succeeding eddendscms (o thiz Hourlgage may be filad in the rame manner 84 conlinue tha
effecliveness of the len hereof,

SAID MORTGAGOR . a_ fusther agren__ o puy all texes and cssesemanty that may be levied
upon seid previines, befere the same shall becoma delinquend (and lo keep the buildings, if any, wpon seid

premires anfoly inyured for lhe bengfif of said Mortgapes

i the sk of 250,000, 00

Dollars agninst logs by fire and deliver the insurance policics to said Mortgagee ).

BH 0474
. !&%miiwiipummumm‘ﬁf'-ﬂ o T '

L A

SEY




e

L

P AT

wtéagee shall within ten days afler receipt of
twsfact@m of thts M ortgage
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k74

B

1 Wle x 1o M Mortgage éontmu'mg the eﬂ“ectwemss of its len
- ; . Succee i fmg addendums to thzs M o*rtga,ge may be filed in the sgme manner to continue the
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e In case oj defoult in the pa—nt of sa dpmnczpal_ i of mongy or any jf_i thereof, or interest thereon at the
Himesoritinies bove-— ' "'any axes, cwsessments or m- 2

we'mént ds promded by statute or- the mles of o
thors ng and consmtutmg a power. of sade s

1990 . before me;
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CHEYENNE RIVER SIOQUX TRIBAL COURT {P“éﬁ
CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBE IN CIVIL COURT
CHEYENNE RIVER INDIAN RESERVATION

LONG FAMILY LAND AND CATTLE

COMPANY, Inc. - RONNIE AND LILA LONG,
Plaintiffs,
vs. MOTION FOR SUMMARY
JUDGMENT
EDWARD AND MARY MACIEJEWSKI
and RALPH H. AND NORMA J. PESICKA,
and THE BANK OF HOVEN, R~120-99

Defendants.

Comes now Defendant, Plains Commerce Bank, formerly known
as the Bank of Hoven, by and through its attorney, David A. Von
Wald, and moves the Court for Summary Judgment on its
counterclaim for the following reasons:

1. This Motion is brought pursuant to Rule 56 of the
Rules of Civil Procedure of the Cheyenne River Sioux
Tribal Law and Order Code.

2. The Court has jurisdiction over Long Family Land and
Cattle Company, Inc. and Ronnie Long and Lila Long in
that the majority ownership of the corporation is
owned by Ronnie Long and Lila Long, enrolled members
of the Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe and the Court has
jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action.

3. There are no genuine issues of material fact.

4. Plaintiffs have wrongfully held over possession of a
portion of the real estate described in Plaintiff’s
Amended Complaint after the execution of a Lease With

An Option To Purchase entered into on December 5,
19%6.

5. The Lease With Option To Purchase wherein Bank of
Hoven, now Plains Commerce Bank, was the Lessor and
Long Family Tand and Cattle Company, Inc. by its terms
expired on expired December 5, 1998.

Sent CoY  SEP1 7202
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6. Defendant, Plains Commerce Bank, has sold a _
portion of the real estate which was Teased to the
Long Corporation to Ralph H. and Norma J. Pesicka and
the remaining portion to Edward Maciejewski and Mary
Jo Maciejewski. The Maciejewskis, however, have been
able tc take possession of only about one half of the
real estate they bought since Plaintiffs are
W;Qnggully"pplgggﬁ over possession of a portion of the
real estate. The legal description of the wrongfully
retained real estate is as follows:

The Northwest Quarter (NW}4) of Section Twenty Five
{25}, all of Section Twenty Eight (28}, and the
Southwest Quarter (SWa) of Section Thirty Four (34),
all in Township Seventeen {17), Range Twenty Five
(25), Bast of the Black Hills Meridian, subject to
easements, reservations and conveyances, if any,
existing and of record.

7. This Motion is made based on the Affidavit of Charles
Simon, attached hereto as Exhibit “1”, the depositions

of the parties, the pleadings and the entire file in
this case.

WHEREFORE, Defendant, Plains Commerce Bank, prays the
Court grant its Motion for Summary Judgment against Plaintiffs
and order that Plaintiffs be evicted from possession of said
real estate, granting Defendants possession of the same. And
additionally, the Court enter a Jjudgment against Plaintiffs for
damages sustained by Defendants for the wrongful possession of
saild real estate by Plaintiffs, and for whatever other relief
as to the Court is deemed just and equitable in the premises.

Dated this (Z day cof September,/2002.

Lo DA Lo /o)

David A. Von Wald, Attorney
for Plains Commerce Bank
P.O. Box 468

Hoven, 8D 57450
605-948-2550

Bank/MotionSummaryJudgment
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CHEYENNE RIVER SIOQUX TRIBAL COURT
CHEYENNE RIVER SIQUX TRIBE

CHEYENNE RIVER INDIAN

THE BANK OF HOVEN, now known as
Plains Commerce Bank,

Defendant/Appellant,

ve.

Long Family Land and Cattle
Company, Inc. -
Ronnie and Lila Long

Plaintiff/Appellee

BEFORE: CHIEF JUSTICE F

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
-

RESERVATION

IN APPELLATE COURT

APPEAL NUMBER 03-002-A

RANK R. POMMERSHEIM

USD School of Law

414 E. Clark st

Vermillion, South Dakota

DATE: October 6, 2004
PLACE: Cheyenne River
Eagle Butte, sD
APPEARANCES :

Representing the Appellee

Representing the Appellant:
Bank of Hoven

Representing the Cheyenne
River Sioux Tribe

Sioux Tribal Court
57625

JAMES P, HURLEY
Bangs, McCullen,
Foye & Simmons
818 st. Joseph Street

Rapid City, South Dakota

Butler,

DAVID A, VON WALD
Attorney at Law

PC Box 468

Hoven, South Dakota

TCOM VAN NORMAN
Attorny at Law
Box 590

Eagle Butte, South Dakota




FORM C-100 - LASER REPCRTERS PAPER & MFG. CO. 800-6826-6313

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

12

jurisdiction of the bank, that's a possibility, but we
have never admitted that they do. 2nd I wanted to point
that out that just egsentially to the Court.
But the firxst issue I raise is regarding the

Tribal Court lacking jurigsdiction. And I think it's
lacking subject matter jurisdiction, for one of the
cauges of action, and that was for digscrimination.
Under 42 U.S$.C.8. 19881, a discrimination action can lie,
that's in Federal law. However, our Supreme Court in
Nevada versus Hicks has said basically that the Tribal
Courts are Courts of limited jurisdiction, and that they
are not, not general jurisdiction that State Court or
Federal Court would be. And so determining an action
for discrimination, a Tribal Court lacks basically
subject matter jurisdiction. I wanﬁed to point that out
to the Court, I guess, more than any other
jurigdicticonal problem, because to me ~-

THE COURT: But isn't it true in Nevada versus
Hicks they were talking about Tribal Court didn't have
jurisdiction over a 1983 claim --

MR. VON WALD: That's r_ight .

THE COURT: That's a Federal cause of action. And
here, I don't believe that the Plaintiffs were asserting
a Federal cause of action against the\baﬁk. They were

serving a Tribal Court cause of action against the bank.

RAPID REPORTING
(605) 343-0066
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I think the theory of the discrimination claim was not
that it created a Federal cause of action, which undex
Nevada v. Hicks would raise some problems, but that it
was a recognized Tribal Gourt cause of action.

MR. VON WALD: Well, I don't think the Plaintiff
has ever alleged that, your Honor. The Tribe has
alleged that, but the Plaintiff has never alleged the
authority for what the discrimination cause of action
ig. As I understand it, there is no tribal statute
specifically on point, that would allege that,
whatsoever., 8o either, becaugse of the fact that there
is no tribal statute that alleges that the Tribe can
have a cause of action agaiﬁ%t a tribal member, I don't
see that tribal law can be used at all. So if it isn't
tribal law, it has to either be Staﬁe law or Federal
law.

So in the Federal case, it came out specifically
-- and not to say that the Plaintiff has brought forth
specifically, 42 U.S5.C.S. 1981. They haven't. But the
allegations ﬁhey have made would be taken care of under
that Federal statute, or possibly under a State statute.
But in either case, Tribal Court doesn't have
jurisdiction, unless there i1s a specific statute that
allows Tribal Court to have jurisdiction over

discrimination cases, and/or a treaty, and there isn't

RAPID REPORTING
(605) 343-0066
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CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBAL COURT
CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBE , IN CIVIL, COURT
CHEYENNE RIVER INDIAN RESERVATICN :
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LONG FAMILY LAND AND CATTLE
COMPANY, INC.-RONNIE AND LITA LONG,

Plaintiffs, _ JURY TRIAL
-vs— . R~120-99
EDWARD AND MARY MACIEJEWSKI ' VOLUME I OF III
and RALPH H. ZAND NORMA J. PESICKA, PAGES 1 TO 227

and THE BANK OF HOVEN,
Defendants.

ok ok ok ok A Kk ok k k ok ko k Kk ok ok Kk ok kK Kk k k ok ok ok Kk K« * * %k Kk K«

TIME AND PLACE: DECEMBER 6, 2002
CHEYENNE RIVER STIOUX TRIBAL COURT
EAGLE BUTTE, SD 57625

BEFORE: HON. B. J. JONES
SISSETCN-WAHPETON SICUX TRIRAL COURT
P.O. BOX 568
AGENCY VIIIAGE, SD 57262-0568

APPEARANCES: MR. JAMES P. HURLEY
Attorney at Law
P.O. Box 2670
Rapid City, SD 57709-2670
ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIEFS

MR. DAVID A. VON WALD
Attorney at Law
P.O. Box 468
Hoven, SD 57450-0468
ATTCRNEY FCR DEFENDANT BANK OF HOVEN

MR. KENNETH "CHUCK" E. JASPER

Attorney at Law

P.O. Box 2093

Rapid City, SD 57709-2093
ATTCRNEY FCR DEFENDANTS EDWARD AND MARY
MACIEJEWSKL AND RALPH AND NORMA PESICKA

ALSO PRESENT: MR, AND MRS. RCONNIE ICNG - PLAINTIFFS
MR. CHUCK SIMON - EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
OF DEFENDANT BANK OF HOVEN
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All right. ILet's go back on the record. Oocp. We're
missing a juror. We're going to be breaking at noon for
lunch, Jurcrs. And we do have a lunch for our jurors. So
we can't force you to eat it. You can go eat it —— eat
somewhere else, but we do have a lunch for you, so.

All right. Iet's go back on the record. Back on the
record in the matter of Long Cattle Company versus Bank of
Hoven. Ronnie Long is testifying, questioning by his

counsel.. Go ahead, Jim.

MR, HURLEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

Q

@)

(BY MR, HURLEY) _Ronnie, we were looking at Exhibit 4 and
that was the letter from the Bank to you April 260, 1996,
correct?

Correct.

And when you first started talking to the Bank ébout this
plan, did the plan involve the transfer of your land to
the Bank and then the Bank selling it back to you on a
contract for deed? '

Yes, it did.

Did there come a time when the Bank's position on that
changed?

Yes. |

And when was that?

It was on April 26 here on the terms of this letter.
And why did the Bank's position change?
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Because of possible jurisdictiocnal problems if they sold
it back me and because I was an Indian-owned entity.
And how did the proposal then change? Would you not be
able to buy it back on a contract for deed then?

No. I had to find -— I would have to find different
financing, I guess BIA or FHA or something;

And by a contract for deed, who is then financing the —
your purchase of the land back from the BRank?

I would say the Bank.

And that position changed to where you couldn't do that;
you had to find other financing?

Yes.

And that's because you are an enrolled Indian?

Yes.

Yes. And you have an Indian-controlled company or
corporation?

Yes.

And that's what the Bank states to you in Exhibit 47
Yes.

And did you discuss that with the Bank as to how that
would make a difference?

They Jjust told me that you would have to find another
financial institution.

Okay. Would you turn to Exhibit 6, please. And do you
recognize Exhibit 67
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Seeing John Lemke down to the Eagle Butte Planning Office
and he told me that the Bank had told him to have me write
a letter describing what I was doing all winter. I don't
know why. It seems as though there was some rumors going
around that I just let the cows die.
Who is John Lemke?
He was the planning officer in Eagle Butte here.
And as a result of that request, you wrote up this letter?
Yes.
And you sent it to Bank of Hoven?
Yes.
And T see on page two you copied it to others?
Sent it to John Lemke, Cheyenne River Tribe Credit
Officer; Russell McClure, Agency Superintendent; Stacey
Johnston, Area Loan Specialist; and Delbert Brewer, Area
Director.
Okay. Page one you start out with December 5. Where were
you on December 5, 199672

I was in Hoven discussing our plans for our cattle
operation and doing the contract.
But that was the date that you signed Exhibit 6 and 7,
isn't it, the loan agreement —-
Yes.

-- and the lease with option to purchase?

Yes.
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At that meeting, did you discuss your needs for a line of
credit?

Yes.

With who?

Everybody that was there.

And did‘you explain why?

Yeah. Because winter was coming on fast and we needed to
movelthe hay. We had the hay. We needed the operating
money.

How much hay did you have?

1400 ton.

Was that adequate to care for your cattle?

Yes.

Where were the cattle?

They was down on my range unit down in the winter country.
It's about 20 miles from home. We usually raise the feed
up at the farm and take the cattle down to the breaks in
the winter.

What do you mean by the "breaks™?

Down on the range unit.

What do "breaks" mean?

Well, it's real deep draws and stuff, and they get cut of
the wind down there. You know, they can take a very hard
winter.

And where was the hay?
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It was up at the farm.

And that's how much distance from where the cattle were?
About 20 miles.

And why does it take operating expense to move the hay to
the cattle?

It takes -- it takes money to hire stack movers, you know.
They don't —— they can't —— they don't do it for nothing,
and they need the money up front just about because they
haul it.

And how was this hay packaged?

Round bales.

So the round bales needed to be loaded?

Yes.

On trucks?

Yeah.

And taken to the cattle?

Taken down there and stacked.

And unlcaded and stacked?

Yes.

And what was the response of those who were there at the
signing of the loan agreement and the lease with option to
purchase?

Well, all that I got is that I would be —- they would be
receiving the BIA guarantee shortly.

And then what?
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And then T would get my operating loan.

Okay. And December 11tR under the paragraph entitled
Decenber 11th, what were you referring to there?

The llth, Jim Nielsen told me he would fax the papers to
Lemke's office and that's referring to -- that's referring
to that letter, the one we just —-

Exhibit 872

The one we just done.

Okay.

Where Jim Nielsen wrote to McClure asking for the
guarantee, the incomplete application.

And what did he tell you about that?

I — I don't know who you are talking about.

Well, under December llth, you say all that was needed is
Stacey Johnston and the Area Director's signatures?

Well, that's all it would have taken.

Okay.

But it was an incomplete application, and nobody could
sign it.

The next paragraph. What did you do?

It says after deciding that we were going to keep the
calves and run for yeariings, which was decided when we —-
when we done the contract.

Who decided that?

Well, when I got the contract, that's where it come up,
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insured which the blanket insurance would have cost
approximately $2,000 covering the cattle plus. The
insurance was brought to everyone's attention the first
part of December."

And by "everyone's attention,” who are you talking about?
At the Bank.

And was -— how is —— how did you plan to pay for that
2,000 insurance premium?

With the operating loan.

Ckay. And you never did get the operating loan?

No.

And then you couldn't insure the cattle?

Right. I had them insured before, but I didn't —— I ran
out of money, and I couldn't renew the premium.

Okay. Go to the next paragraph if you would,

"The cattle were in the best location possible for most
winters, but due to the blocked roads and bad weather
conditions it was impossible to get feed to them on a
daily basis."

And the next paragraph?

"T had minimal losses until the blizzard of January 15th
and 16™ when the wind chill was 50 to 80 degrees below
zero and the cattle drifted out of the draws.” Those are
the ones that died.

Now, those that didn't drift out of the draws, down in the
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And that's out of the calves?

Yeah. 349 cows and I lost 230 head.

And how many cows did you have left then after the winter
blizzards?

119.

Now, if you had operating money and were able to get your
hay down to those cows, in your experience with that
winter quarters, would your cows have been able to
survive?

Yes.

And would your calves have been able to survive?

Yes.

And had you wintered there before with hay available in
the breaks?

Yes.

Now in connection with Exhibit 14, you mentioned FEMA.
What is that?

It's a federal disaster deal that pays you a percentage of
what your loss is.

Is that also part of when I see the letters LIP, LIP?
Yes.

In connection with the FEMA application, did anyone from
the U. 3. Government Department of Agriculture or
otherwise come and verify these losses?

Yes. BAn outfit out of Kansas City was the inspector
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That would buy the land back.

From the Bank?

From the Bank.

Take a look at Exhibit 18, please. What does that
document say?

This is a letter back from the Bank dated December 209,
1998, the next day, and it was saying that there would be
no extension, and the contract terminates December 5th,
Okay. And as of this date, December 2, 1998, had the Bank
ever made the operating loan of $70,000 to you?

No. |

And had the Bank ever made the loan of 53,000 so you could
buy the 110 head of calves?

No.

And had the Bank ever reapplied to the BIA.with a more
conplete application for increasing the guaranteed 84 to
90 percent?

No.

Would you go to Exhibit 20, please? What was your
understanding of those three documents that are marked
Exhibit 207

It was a letter from the Bank of Hoven addressing the
Tribal Court with certain notice to quit on me to get off
the land.

And this was the Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe Tribal Court?
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line in that first exhibit?

77,000 — 80,000.

84,000, isn't it?

Right, 84. Yes.

$84,477, right?

The eighth month.

The eighth month. So what that indicates is with that
particular cash flow, you would have needed $85,000 in
order to break-even because you have a loss -- you have a
minus balance of 84,000 on the eighth month, right?
According to this cash flow.

Yes. And that cash flow is the one that wés sent from the
Chairman's Office, did not originate from the Bank of
Hoven, but was sent from the Chairman's Office on
December 111, right?

Who made it?

Who makes them over at the Chairman's Office?

I don't know who made it.

Well, isn't that where Ronnie —— John lLemke works?

He did, yes.

Were you over there then?

I don't know if I was over there at this date.

Well, when John Lemke would make out cash flows, wouldn't
he talk to you about what figures to put in?

I don't know. I don't know these cash flows. That's all
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modification which requires a more complete application,

and it sent them the criteria and stuff on making a

“correct and complete application, which was never done.

And in the loan agreement, Exhibit 6, whose obligation was
it in your agreement to make application to the BIA?

The Bank of Hoven.

And you're looking at Exhibit 11. Was —- did the BIA
point out to the Bank that the application was not
conplete?

Yes.

And to your knowledge —~-

It says right in here, "We will not act on your
December 12th, 1996 request, until we have received a
complete application. Under separate cover we are again
sending a copy of 25 CFR 103."

And to your information, has the Bank ever reappiied to
the BIA with a complete application?

No. Not for this program.

In this letter we are looking at, Exhibit 11, is there any
mention of an emergency feed loan to you?

Yes.

And is the BIA authorizing or approving that loan?

Yes, they are. It says, "We understand the emergency
situation caused by the severe winter conditions;

therefore, we concur with a loan for emergency expenses.
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These expenses should be documented and readily available
to the agency superintendent. This decision is made with
the intention of preserving collateral. Refer to 25 CFR
103.22 for further direction and documentation."

And in this letter -- who's writing this letter?

The Area Director.

Of?

The United States Department of Interior, Bureau of Indian
Affairs.

And who is he writing it to?

He is writing it to Mr. Nielsen, the loan officer at the
Bank.

And did the Bank make an emergency operating loan to you
in response to this letter and authorization by the BIA?
No.

Did you request that the Bank release money so you could
move the hay to the cattle before the cattle died?

Yes.

When was that?

All through November and December and January, February.
There was one time before Christmas. I don't know the
exact day. I was sitting in John ILemke's office at the
Planning Office in Fagle Butte here, and we was discussing
this. And he —— and he said -- he brought up this —- this
documentation or this CER 25, 103.22.
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What did that deal with?

That dealt with the emergency feed deal to protect the
collateral.

And the collateral was?

The cattle.

.What happened then?

T said let's go for it. So he called the Bank up. I sat
in his office and listened to him talk to the Bank, so
they were informed about it,

And that was what point in time?

Just before Christmas in 1996.

And did the Bank make any emergency loan to move the hay
to the cattle at that point in time?

No.

. Did the severe winter weather kill the cattle or did the

Bank's failure to make the loan —- the operating lban in
your view kill the cattle?

What killed the cattle was I ~- they didn't have any feed,
you know. If they would have had feed and if I could have
moved the hay, if I would have had the operating money to
move the hay, the cattle would have had no problems
because they was in the —- some of the best winter country
in -~— around here.

On cross—examination I believe you —— correct me if I'm

wrong —— you answered counsel that you had some hay in the
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contracted or leased to an Indian-owned entity on the
reservation."

Q And as you were being advised then, Chuck, did you mean
that the Bank would not sell the Long land back to the

Longs on a contract for deed?

A Yes.
UNIDENTIFIED: (INAUDIBLE) .
THE COURT: Okay. We're bringing you lunch, Jurors, so we'll

probably break at 12, although —- is that clock still

fast?

UNIDENTIFIED: Yes.

THE CCOURT: All right. The jury is now being shown a blowup
of Exhibit No. —-

MR. HURLEY: 4.

THE COURT: — 4,

Q (BY MR. HURLEY) Would you turn to Exhibit 52, please?

And this shows that it's from Charles Simon, yourself, to
John Lemke at the CRST Credit Office, correct, dated
November 15t, 1996. It's your Deposition Exhibit 18
marked in the upper right corner?

A Yes.

Q OCkay. Can you recall we talked about this at your
deposition?

A Yes,

Q And this is —- this is a document or a report that you
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guaranteed amount of $428,930 at 84 percent, correct?
That's 16.
A Exhibit 167

Q Yes, please. ,

MR. VON WALD: That, Your Honor, I don't believe is in evidence
yet.

THE COURT: I've got 16 was never offered. So do you want to

offer it now?

MR. HURIEY: Yes, please. Given for quick reference here.
THE COURT: All right.
Q (BY MR. HURLEY) So it would be 10 percent of that or

approximately $42,8007?

Yes.

Q And under the CFR, that would be for the preservation,
maintenance, or maintenance to the property?

A Yes.

Q Or the collateral?

A Yes.

Q It would be for the protection of the-iqterest of the
lender or the borrower?

A Yes.

Q To take care of the collateral? And the repayment of the
protective advance would be automatically guaranteed at

the same percentage rate as applied to the original amount

of the loan, correct?
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And you would agree that what he has down there was the
reason why that note was made and how that money was
spent?

Yes.

Ckay. And the total there is 23,968, and that's what you
were referring to just a minute ago in your comments?
Yes.

Okay. In your letter to Mr. Lemke, Exhibit 6, which is
the loan agreement, and isn't it true that the $70, 000
operating loan was never made to the Longs?

Yes.

And it's also true that the $53,300 loan was never made?
There was revisions to that, Jim, so eventually there is
something made to them but -~ but in those amounts, no.
Okay. And it's true that the funds to purchase the 110
calves in the amount of 37,500 to be fed and pastured with
the Long calves, that loan was not made?

That's right.

And therefore, the Longs were unable to buy the 110
calves, correct?

Yes.

And it's true that the Bank was aware of the situation in
December of '96, January of '97, where the Longs had a
problem, and they couldn't get their hay moved over to

their cattle?
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A No, we weren't aware of that.

Q Do you recall when I took your deposition August 4th of
20007

A Yes.

Q And I asked you this question —-

MR. VON WALD: What page are you referring to, Jim?

MR. HURLEY: This is 81.

Q (BY MR. HURLEY) Right after the questions that I just

L ORI @ R

asked you, "The Bank was aware of that situation where the
Longs had a problem they couldn't get their hay moved to
their cattle?" And your answer was "yes." Do you see
that?

Yes.

So was your —— does that refresh your recollection?

Yes.

Then the Bank was aware that the Longs had that problem,
and they needed to get scme money to get that hay moved
over to the cattle, correct?

Yes.

And other than the loans which you just referred to in
Exhibit 23 —- excuse me —— 22, and we just went through
those for the grass lease for the coming year, the used
snowmobile, payment of the old bills in the amount of
23,968, the Bank did not make any other emergency loan to
the Longs in December, January —— December 1996,
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January 1997; isn't that right?

Yes.

And would you turn to Exhibit 17, please? And this is the
letter of Ronnie Long to the Bank. Do you see that?

Yes.

And it's dated December 1, 19987

Yes.

So he wrote the letter some three or four days before the
two years was up under the lease with option to purchase?
Yes.

And you knew that the Longs wanted to buy their land back,
correct?

Yes.

And we saw in the lease where if the Longs had paid their
5 percent down payment, then they would have a 60-day
extension, correct?

Yes.

And Ronnie Long states in the letter that —- states in the
letter that "I have four possibilities for refinancing and
paying the debt off against the land that the Bank holds
the deed on." Do you see that?

Yes:

And, "This will allow me the necessary time to try to
secure the financing for this-endeavor. T have a bank

interested and will be looking at the land in the next day
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Yes, I did. |

And there was testimony that Chuck Simon, Jim Nielsen,
both were present from the Bank. Do you recall that?
Yes, I do.

And also Bank of Hoven, President Dennis Jensen was
present?

He was there, yeah.

And Bank Attorney, David Von Wald, was present?

I think I sat next to David.

And you and Brett Maxon were there?

Brett Maxon, my assistant.

And from the CRST Planning Office, John Lemke?

Yeah, John was there.

Harley Henderson?

Harley was there.

Also Monica Lind?

Yeah.

And she's from the local CRST office as well?

Right.

And Ronnie and Lila Long?

Yes, they were there.

And then Stacey Johnston of the BIA was present by speaker
phone; is that correct?

Speaker phone, yeah.

And during the period of time that you were working with
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the Longs, as far as you know, they were not working with

a lawyer on their behalf?

A No. Never talked to any attorneys at any time.

Q And what was your involvement in this project with the

| Longs and the Bank?

A As director and as head of the program, we assigned some
of the work to Brett Maxon, my associate, so he was always
kind of working when we traveled. But I usually had the
final say on what was going to be submitted to —— to the
BIA or to the Bank for consideration in terms of
documentation or — in this case, you know, particularly,
probably the cash flow (INAUDIBLE) .

Q Would you turn in the book before you to Exhibit 8A? The
implication do you see in that date line on there of 10-29
of 19967

A Yes.

Q I will show you that blowup of 8A.

MR. HURLEY: May I show these to the jury, Your Honor?

THE COURT': You may.

Q (BY MR, HURLEY) Do you recognize those cash flows?

A Yes, I do.

Q And are those cash flows in part your work product?

A Yes.

Q Did you work with Ronnie and Lila Long in developing those

cash flows?
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And there was some talk that somebody made a presentation
in front of the group in terms of a blackboard or some
other presentation that everyone could see. Do you recall
that?

Yes.

And who did that?

Brett Maxon, I think was doing our writing for us at that
time.

OCkay. And he was summarizing what was going on?

Right.

At the end of that group meeting, what was the outcome?
Well, I think we all came away feeling that this was
pretty well a done deal now. And with, like I said, the
consensus of the group, yeah, let's go forward with it.
And Stacey didn't seem to have any problems with what we
came up with. I don't think a lot of emphasis was put on
the guarantees because the loans that were there already
had 80 percent or 84 percent guarantees, so going to 90
really isn't going -- it's going to give the Bank a

6 percent extra cushion, but there's still —— you know,
the collateral seemed to be there, the guarantee was in
place already, so it was just a matter of getting his kind
of like —- kind of a nod that -- that the -- from the
speaker phone that, yeah, let's go ahead and do it now.
Was that —
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And T think the —-

Was that the position of the BIA?

Yeah, right.

In agreement?

I would say so, yeah.

Was that the position of the Bank in agreement?

Right.

When you look at your cash flow —— and we have it up here
on the board, Exhibit 8A -- were you asked to explain the
cash flow?

I can't really say that we went through that in detail;
but to come up with these numbers, the operating loan and
all of that, I think we might have did that stuff on the
board. And this document was prepared afterwards and then
submitted to Jchn Lemke.

Did the numbers at that meeting indicate that the plan
would work?

Right. Yeah, it did.

And were you asked if the plan would work in your opinion?
Yes. I think we did, veah.

Because if the plan wasn't going to work cash flow wise,
then what?

Well, we wouldn't —— you know, we wasted our time then.
Why would we present something that —— that isn't going to

work? The cash flow —— you have to have money coming in;
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credit at all?
A No.
Q And in your work is an operating line of credit important

to this farm and ranch business?

A Well, yes, it is, because in farming and ranching both,

your income is mostly one time a year, you know. If it's
crops, it's in September and October. If it's cattle,
it's in October and November. So the remaining 9 months
or 11 months, you got to have scmething to keep your
operating going, and usually we front-load. I mean you
can look at your cash flows. We front load our operating
money in the beginning of the plan. And if they need
something during the hay season and so forth like that,
then we load it again. But —- I mean without operating

money, you're doomed. I mean you're doomed to fail right

away.

THE COURT: That —— Jim?

MR. HURLEY: Yes.

THE: COURT: You've blown up Exhibit 8? Is that what you're

showing here?

MR. HURLEY: This is Exhibit 8.

THE. COURT': All right. That's the cash flow that was
submitted along with the ——

MR. HURLEY: Financial statement.

THE. COURT: -~ with the increase and the guarantee. You
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didn't have that blown up last week, right?

MR, HURLEY: No. Because I didn't know it existed.

THE COURT: Just for the record, you've now blown up 8.

MR, HURLEY: Yes, sir.

THE COURT': All right.

A That's not our work.

Q (BY MR. HURLEY) Pardon?

A That's not our work, that -- that cash flow.

O And this is Exhibit 8, which was an attachment with the
letter December 12th, you're looking at, which is Exhibit
8, correct?

A Yeah. |

o) And you have the smaller versions of what the jury has,
right?

A (INAUDIRLE) .
And you were explaining that the operating loan is key to
the success of a farm and ranch business like the Longs
have?

A Yes.
And does the operating loan also have to be timely? 1In
other words, when it's needed?

A Well, yes. It's kind of what I said earlier. We
front-load ours to make sure they've got encugh right
away .

Q And before coming here today, had you ever seen this cash




Ww O @~ &y U e W N

NONONN R e 2 P e e
SR DUDBRERSE 5956860656

410

flow before?

A No, I haven't. I don't know who would submit this. I
mean you've got a chécking account that's in arrears for
28,000 the first month.

Q How do you know that?

A Well, it says it right here. Debt of 28,000, ending cash.

Q Do the parentheses around it mean that you're —-

A I mean I wish I had a bank that would give me a line of
credit or let me write overdrafts in those amounts
straight through. I mean that would be everybody's dream,
I think, that ——

Q If you were looking at a business with this cash flow
versus the one you did, would this one appear to have less
of a chance of making it?

A Well, vyes. Yeah; I don't think the Bureau would even
approve that.

Q And under this, as we can see from the letter, the line of
credit is increased from 70,000 to 85,000. Do you see
that?

Right con the left, yeah.

Q Does that indicate that this cash flow for the same
business is more needy of borrowed money?

A Yes.

MR, HURLEY: May I approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: You may.
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Yeah. At the end of the second year according to your

cash flow here, he should end up with about 130,000,

right?

Yes.
VON WALD:
COURT':

No more questions.

All right. Jurors —— all right. We've got a

question from the jury. Thank you. Okay. I think this

is a good question, good and simple, the way I like it.

"Whose initials are on top of 8A cash flow, Year 1?" I

don't know if Dennis knows that, but . . . It's the one ~-

can the parties stipulate whose initials are those?

. VON WALD:

COURT':

. HURLEY:

COURT:

is -

. VON WALD:

COURT:
Jurors.

WITNESS:

COURT:
HURLEY :
COURT':

VON WALD:

I think it's Jim Nielsen's.
Do you stipulate to that?
That would be fine, Your Honor.

The answer to the question is Jim Nielsen who

A bank officer.

—-— a bank officer. It's a good question though,
Okay. Thank you.

Thank vyou.

(WITNESS EXCUSED) .

Anything else from the plaintiff?

Your Honor, may I have half a moment?

A half a moment.

That's a short one.
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